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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Designed by Denver architectural firm Fisher and Wisher 
for Senator Lawrence 0. Phipps as a private residence, the 
building was erected in 1932 by Platt Roger Construction ^omp, 
The Georgian style home has two full stories, a basement and 
a sub-basement, ^o major alterations have been made to the 
structure and it is in excellent physical condition. The 
house is constructed of concrete and brick on a concrete and 
block foundation of excellent quality. The structure is 
completely fireproof, all inlaid floors are underlaid with 
stone slabs. The first floor contains 8,724 sq. feet, the 
second, 8,199 sq. feet, the basement 4,488 sq. feet, and with 
the sub-basement, 6,100 sq. feet. m

A large canopy covered porch on the west side of the house 
directly off the front foyer, is made of brick. A small 
porch on the second floor on the west side is uncovered and 
provides access from what was originally Mrs. Phipps 1 bedroom
A small uncovered porch on the east side was off the servants

n 
quarters.

The chimneys are of brick construction. There are 
seven individual stacks, four fireplaces use each stack. °

The exterior of the building is of red brick, in the 
formal neo-classical style. The estate included eleven acres 
and on it are a greenhouse, tool shed, and the principal 
outbuilding, the Tennis House. Long a landmark in the 
Belcaro area, the House consists of a tennis court with a 
high arched ceiling containing skylights. The court itself 
is at garden level, with a majority of the building elevated 
above it. Overlooking the court is a spacious gallery. To 
the east of the gallery is a spacious living room, the front 
entrance, kitchen and coat room. To the west of the gallery 
are two changing rooms with baths. A courtyard and the 
public garden to the main house opens off the gallery.

The estate is surrounded by four principal garden areas; 

a formal English style private garden with fountain and four
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reflecting pools. To the east and west are park-like areas, 
and to the north is a garden connecting the Main House and the 
Tennis House, English in nature.

In designing the mansion, the firm of Fisher and Wisher 
had the assistance of Mr. Charles Platt (no relation to Mrs. 
Phipps), a recognized authority on Georgian architecture from 
New York City.

The main house is rectangular in plan, with minor pro­ 
jections at the center front facade (the east facade), the 
south corner of the building, and the corresponding portion 
of the building to the north of the entrance (south of the 
wing), and at the two sides for the end chimneys. The quoins 
at the outside corners of the projections are of white stone. 
A wing, one story high, extends to the North. It possesses 
the same elements of design as the main portion of the building.

The facade of the main portion of the house is symmetrical 
The roof is hipped, with a center gable over the front entrance, 
which is boxed to form a pediment, ^entered in the pediment is 
a roundel. The doorway is set in a tabernacle frame with two 
pilasters and two columns which support a broken pediment.

The windows on the first floor are all rectangular with 
double-hung sashes and are topped by stone lintels with key­ 
stones. The shorter rectangular windows on the second floor 
also have white stone keystones.

Notable interior features include: four hundred year old 
pine panelling from an English manor house in the dining room, 
oak panelling from an historic old London mansion in the game 
room. The room was built to fit the panelling, the ceiling 
is a bas relief of the War of the Roses. The living room is 
panelled in Austrian oao/ A musical library is located in a 
sliding wall panel. Above the door is a handcarved Phipps 
crest and over the fireplace is an eagle and flag carving.

GP 0 921-724
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The library has book shelves from floor to ceiling on three 
sides, with a ladder on overhead rail for access to upper shelves 
The north wall has a fireplace with a Grenling gibbons carving 
surrounding a portrait of Mrs. Platt Rogers.

Guest bedrooms have original silk and vinyl wallpapers. 
The four main bedrooms are panelled in pine, with the exception 
of the Senator's which, with his dressing room, was of Austrian 
oak. The downstairs breakfast room was originally papered i® 
a very ornate hand-painted floral design, which was painted 
before it was hung. It has now been converted into an office 
with a leather-like wall covering.

The main stairway opposite the dining room is U-shaped, 
of white travertine marble. The great corridor running the 
full length of the house is also of travertine, as is the 
foyer. 1J-'he arches along the hall are decorated with floral 
patterns in low relief. At the end of the great hall is an 
elevator which runs to the basement where a gun room and play­ 
room were located. A servant stairway serves the storage 
basement and servants' quarters.

All doors opening into the long hallway are mahogany 
from Santa DOmingo, according to Davis and Baldwin's Denver 
Dwellings and Descendants.

In the foyer stands a Kimball-Wells organ. Pipes are in 
the basement and send the sound up through ducts to sound panels 
behind large Flemish tapestries.

Hot water heat and electric heat are used. Gas stoves 
are also used. Lighting is primarily by brass fixtures wired 
for electricity. Chandelier in the stairwell is a composite 
fixture from an old whaling vessel. lj-'he living room chandeliers 
are made of English sterling silver.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lawrence Cowle Phipps amassed a fortune as Vice President 
and Treasurer of Carnegie Steel in Pittsburgh. He resigned 
in 1901 after the death of his wife, and moved with his two 
children, Lawrence, Jr. and Emma, and his second wife, the 
former Genevieve Ghandler of Pittsburgh to Denver. The family 
moved into the Bethel Mansion on Golfax Avenue and soon be­ 
came one of the leading social^ financial and political familie 
in Denver. Two children were born to his second wife, Helen 
and Dorothy. In 1903, Phipps built the Agnes Memorial Sanatari 
for the treatment of tuberculosis, dedicated to his mother, who 
had died of the disease, ^'he building later, in 1935, became 
the administration building for Lowry Airfield (now Air i'orce 
Base). Mr. and Mrs. Phipps were divorced in 1904 and seven 
years later, Mr. Phipps married Margaret Rogers, daughter of 
Judge and Mrs. Platt Rogers. This marriage produced two more 
children, Alan -^ogers and Gerald Hughes Phipps. Phipps was 
active in the community as a promoter of Pitzsimmons Hospital 
and a spearhead for the American Red Gross. In 1938, he 
built the quarter million dollar auditorium wing of the Denver 
Museum of Natural History.

Inevitably, Phipps became a vital force in public affairs. 
He worked for irrigation, electric power, farm-to-town roads, 
and cheap farm loans to promote agriculture. He headed the 
Colorado Taxpayers League and played a major part in the 
building of the Moffat Railroad Tunnel through the Rocky 
fountains.

From local Republican party politics in Colorado, Phipps

:um
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moved on to become a national political figure. He was elected 
to the United ^tates Senate in 1918 and served two terms, until 
19$0. He pushed for an air mail service, the farm loan and labor 
bureaus, the cooperative marketing act and other rural legis­ 
lation. He fought for protective tariff, for economy in govern­ 
ment, and, oddly enough, considering the multi-millionaire he 
was, for abolition of tax-exempt securities. At that time, he 
had been rated one of the wealthiest men in the United States. 
Declining to run for a third term, Senator Phipps sold the Bethe 
ManSion on Coifax Avenue in 1932 and, despite the ̂ Depression in 
which he had lost millions in the slump of the steel stocks, he 
built a new mansion in Belcaro, an exclusive suburban district 
of south Denver. Explaining the building of the mansion in the 
depths of the Depression, Phipps said, "It was a project that 
would furnish business and labor to many. So I went ahead 
with it." It should be noted that every effort was made to use 
Colorado products and to share the wealth, no more than two 
members of any one family were allowed to work on the construc­ 
tion. The building cost $500,000.00. Mr. Phipps died at age 
90 in 1958. His estate was valued at over ten million dollars.

Today the mansion is used by the University of Denver as 
a conference center, to which it lends itself beautifully, 
though its rich and gracious flavor has been diminished by the 
removal of many of the Phipps 1 furnishings. The first floor 
still retains its charm and opulence, but the second floor 
which now serves as conference rooms and bedrooms for visitors, 
has lost its charm. However, Denver University is working to 
renew the splendor of the interior by placing in the mansion 
valued antiques as they are donated to the school.

It seems particularly fitting that the home built by 
this man, who was so emminent in Denver society, commerce, and 
government, and whose family remains in Denver carrying on that 
grand tradition, should serve as the gathering place for the

GPO 921-724
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exchange of information and knowledge. The Phipps Mansion is 
a visual landmark of great beauty in the Belcaro area, but it 
is more importantly a symbol of the great spirit of one of the 
men who lead Denver from its boom town beginning into its future 
as a center for commerce and culture in the West.
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